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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The William Bedford, Sr., House faces south on Washington Avenue, a tree-lined
residential street. It is set back on the lot which carries through the entire
depth of the block, so that the rear of the house is easily visible from
Blackford Avenue. A dependency is adjacent to the house on the east side;

a connected garage, probably of a later date, is entered from Blackford Avenue.

The house is basically rectangular in plan with a small projecting one-story

bay on the west side and a two-story polygonal bay on the rear (north). It is

a two-story structure of red brick bearing walls laid in common bond. The
three-bay facade has a one-story open porch extending across the entire front,
with four white columns on brick piers and a central double entrance (probably

a later addition). A projecting clapboarded bay, also possibly a later addition,
is centered over the porch on the second story. Front windows are broad with
stone sills and lintels, doublehung with single lights. Rear windows are

narrow with stone sills and flat arches, and are doublehung with six lights

over six.

The roof is gabled, of medium pitch, with a steep gable on the central front
bay, and conical roof over the rear bay. The present roofing material is
asbestos shingling although, considering the trade of the owner and other houses
of the period, it was probably originally slate. Compound chimneys are of
brick with corbeled caps. The central chimney has two flues; two interior
chimneys on either side have three flues each.

The dependency is also of brick construction. One end of the gabled roof is
parapeted with raking bond coursing along the roof line. It has a single end
chimney.

It is apparent that the house was altered at some time, but the dates and nature
of the alterations are not known. Architects Wood and McKennon were hired in
1877 to design improvements to the house, but their plans do not appear to

have been carried out. A fire in 1879 did some damage to the "cornice" and
roof, according to a newspaper account.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of the Bedford House stems from its design--unusual in this
area--and its owner and probable builder, William Bedford, Sr.

The Bedfords came to Evansville in 1853 from Ramsey, Huntingdonshire, England.
William, Sr., was a bricklayer, plasterer, slater and stonecutter. Together
with William, Jr., also a bricklayer, he began contracting in 1856. Over the
course of several years they worked on many prominent local buildings together
and separately, including the old U.S. Post Office and Custom House, the
Grein Building, the Viele house, the Carpenter Street School, the St. George
Hotel, and the Baptist church at Cherry and Third. Bedford Avenue was named
after them.

In 1873 the senior Bedford purchased land on Washington Avenue, then east of the
corporation line, and the house was completed by 1874. The English influence

is quite evident, particularly in the rear, and seems closer in origin to the
architecture of Virginia than that of the Midwest. Another Bedford home at

20 E. Chandler Avenue (now demolished) may also have been built by its owner.
Its compound chimneys and flat brick arches closely resembled those of the house
on Washington Avenue, suggesting the same English derivation for both houses.

In 1879 William Bedford, Sr., constructed a racetrack, which no longer exists,
across Washington Avenue from his house. The horse races held there were well
publicized.

In 1887, William, Jr. was a co-founder of the firm that since 1901 has been
known as Bedford-Nugent.
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